
TOWN OF GRANITE QUARRY 
PLANNING BOARD  

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

February 3, 2025 
6:00 p.m. 

Planning Board 
Call to Order  
Determination of Quorum 
Pledge of Allegiance  

1. Approval of Agenda

2. Approval of Minutes January 6, 2025 

New Business 
3. Draft Ordinance ZMA 2025-02-10-1 3006 Old Concord Road 

4. Draft Ordinance ZMA 2025-02-10-2 260 Tingle Drive 

Recess for Technical Review Committee PB Input 

Technical Review Committee 
1) Farmside Way
2) Troutman TND

Reconvene Planning Board Meeting 

Old Business 
5. Annual Review Rules of Procedure 

Recess to Hold Board of Adjustment Meeting 

Board of Adjustment 
Call to Order 6:15 p.m. 
Determination of Quorum 

1. Approval of Agenda

Planning Board Page 1



Planning Board Meeting & Board of Adjustment Meeting Agenda 
February 3, 2025 

P a g e  | 2 

 
2. Approval of Minutes   January 6, 2025  
 
New Business     None 
Old Business     None  
         
Adjourn  
 
 
 
Planning Board 
Reconvene Planning Board Meeting 
 
Old Business continued  
    
Adjourn       
 
 
 

Planning Board Page 2



 

 
                                                              

TOWN OF GRANITE QUARRY 
PLANNING BOARD MEETING  

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, January 6, 2025 

 
Present: Vice-Chair Jared Mathis, Greg Summitt, Jerry Holshouser, Fred Krusemark, Chairman Hudson 
joined the meeting at 6:01 p.m. 
Not Present: Ronald Jacobs, Dolores Shannon (A) 
Staff: Planning, Zoning, and Subdivision Administrator Richard Flowe; Town Clerk Aubrey Smith 
 
Call to Order: Vice-Chairman Mathis called the Planning Board meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
Determination of Quorum: Vice-Chairman Mathis verified there was a quorum present. 
Pledge of Allegiance: The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Vice-Chairman Mathis. 
 
1. Approval of Agenda 

Mr. Flowe requested that the Board consider amending the agenda by adding a recess for a Technical 
Review Committee Meeting. 
 
ACTION: Mr. Summitt made a motion to approve the agenda with the amendment. Chairman Hudson 
seconded the motion. The motion passed with all in favor. 

 
2. Approval of Minutes   December 2, 2024 

ACTION: Chairman Hudson made a motion to approve (the December 2, 2024 meeting minutes). Mr. 
Summitt seconded the motion. The motion passed with all in favor. 
 

3. Elections     Annual Election of Officers 
A. Election of Chair 

Mr. Mathis nominated Joe Hudson for Chair. There were no other nominations. 
 
ACTION: Mr. Mathis made a motion to elect Joe Hudson as Planning Board Chair. Mr. Krusemark 
seconded the motion. The motion passed with all in favor. 
 

B. Election of Vice-Chair  
Chairman Hudson nominated Jared Mathis for Vice-Chair. There were no other nominations. 

 
ACTION: Chairman Hudson made a motion to elect Jared Mathis as Planning Board Vice-Chair. 
Mr. Holshouser seconded the motion. The motion passed with all in favor. 

 
Recess 
ACTION: Chairman Hudson made a motion to recess the meeting (to attend a Technical Review 
Committee meeting). Mr. Summitt seconded the motion. The motion passed with all in favor. 
 
The meeting was recessed at 6:06 p.m. 
Vice-Chairman Mathis called the Planning Board meeting back to order at 6:21 p.m. 
 

Planning Board Page 3



P l a n n i n g  B o a r d  M e e t i n g  M i n u t e s  
  J a n u a r y  6 ,  2 0 2 5  

P a g e  | 2 

 
 

Old Business  
4. Draft Ordinance Review   ZMA 2025-02-10-3 Troutman TNDO Amendment 

Mr. Flowe introduced the Zoning Map Amendment request for 507 Troutman Street. Mr. Kostadinov 
of S&M Financial Group, LLC presented the request to update the designated Traditional 
Neighborhood Development Overlay District with Conditional Zoning. The Board reviewed the 
amended plan and asked questions regarding specifics of the project. The request was that the Planning 
Board recommend approval of the TNDO with the following conditions: 

1. Only the uses listed in Table 8.1 of the Granite Quarry Development Ordinance (GQDO) for 
the Single-Family Residential (SFR) Districts are eligible in the “Traditional Neighborhood 
Development Overlay District Conditional Zoning” (TNDO-CZ) created herein. 

2. The general schematic development plan appearing below establishes general layout of lots 
and parcels, maximum density, location of open space, placement of privately maintained 
public access and utility easements, placement of future public streets, and connectivity 
patterns with existing streets in the vicinity. 

3. Development criteria is established as shown on the Site Plan as revised/received 12-18-2024, 
and dated 12-12-2024, attached hereto and made a part of this Ordinance and as shown on the 
excerpt appearing below. 

 

 
 

ACTION: Mr. Summitt made a motion to recommend approval (of ZMA 2025-02-10-3 to the Mayor 
and Town Council). Chairman Hudson seconded the motion. The motion passed 5-0.  

 
New Business        
5. Presentation and Discussion  NC Session Law 2024-57 

Mr. Flowe spoke on the newly passed Session Law 2024-57 which was the disaster recovery bill for 
Western North Carolina. Items that will affect municipal planning were added to the bill. The bill states 
that, “No amendment to zoning regulations or a zoning map that down-zones property shall be initiated, 
enacted, or enforced without the written consent of all property owners whose property is the subject 
of the down-zoning amendment.” The process of adopting Development Ordinances has been heavily 
impacted. Granite Quarry is in a good position having already adopted the GQDO. Texts amendments 
that reduce permitted uses or are considered down-zoning will look different moving forward. 

 
 
 
 

Planning Board Page 4



P l a n n i n g  B o a r d  M e e t i n g  M i n u t e s  
  J a n u a r y  6 ,  2 0 2 5  

P a g e  | 3 

 
 

6. Annual Review    Rules of Procedure  
The Board was presented the current Rules of Procedure that were adopted in 2023. It was decided that 
any recommendations for change can be discussed at the February meeting. 

 
Adjournment  
ACTION:  Mr. Krusemark made a motion to adjourn. Mr. Summitt seconded the motion. The motion 
passed with all in favor. Vice-Chairman Mathis closed the meeting at 6:55 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Aubrey Smith 
Town Clerk 

Planning Board Page 5



1 

Annexation Process Memo – 3006 Old Concord Road – 20250113 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Town of Granite Quarry, N.C. 

 

To: Mayor and Town Council   

 

Date: January 13, 2025 

 

From: F. Richard “Rick” Flowe, AICP, Planning, Zoning & Subdivision Administrator 

 

Re: Voluntary Annexation Petition for non-contiguous property of EAGLE 

MOUNTAIN HOLDINGS LLC and AMBRO AND SONS LLP, 2500 COUNTY RD 42 

W. BURNSVILLE, MN 55337 

 

BACKGROUND 

On December 16, 2024, the owner of property located at 3006 Old Concord Road (Rowan 

County Parcel ID 402 062) submitted a petition for voluntary non-contiguous annexation 

into the town limits of the Town of Granite Quarry.  The properties when taken together 

consist of approximately 1.16 acres.  Location map from Rowan County GIS: 

 

       

 
  

Planning Board Page 6



2 

Annexation Process Memo – 3006 Old Concord Road – 20250113 

 

FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS 

The North Carolina General Statutes require that property deemed non-contiguous to the 

“primary corporate limits” of a municipality must meet certain requirements for 

annexation.  The following provisions demonstrate the eligibility of the subject property(s) 

for annexation by the Town as follows: 

1. The property lies within an area contained within the defined boundaries of an 

annexation boundary agreement authorized by NCGS 160A, Article 4A, Part 6.  

2. The property meets the requirements of NCGS 160A-58.1(b2).  

3. The property owner has submitted a petition to the Town of Granite Quarry for 

annexation.   

 

The property does not currently have a Town of Granite Quarry zoning designation due to 

its location beyond the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction of the Town; therefore, a concurrent 

hearing may be held at the time of annexation to designate an initial zoning designation 

upon the Official Zoning Map of the Town. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The property will be subject to applicable taxes and fees in accordance with rates in effect 

throughout the Town.    The Town will deliver standard municipal services for this property 

upon development.  The Town will receive additional revenues from Ad Valorum tax 

assessments and applicable state shared revenues.   

 

RECOMMENDATION FOR ACTION ON ANNEXATION & ZONING 

There are several steps required to annex and apply Town zoning to this property.  The 

following outline illustrates how this process may be completed in two regular meetings of 

the Mayor and Town Council. 

 

THE ACTIONS THAT MAY BE TAKEN AT THE January 13, 2025 MEETING 

INCLUDE: 

 

a. Direct (by Resolution #RES-2025-01-13-1) for the Town Clerk to 

investigate the sufficiency of the petition.  

b. Clerk presents “Certification of Sufficiency” to the Board 

c. Upon receipt of petition certification by Town Clerk, call (by Resolution 

#RES-2025-01-13-2) for public hearing at next regular meeting.  

 

 

ADDITIONAL STEPS BEFORE AND BETWEEN TOWN BOARD MEETINGS  

While the Mayor and Town Council undertake the process of annexation, staff will: 

1. Place an item on the February 3, 2025 Planning Board agenda a request their 

recommendation on the designation of the appropriate zoning district requested by 

the petitioner as “Industrial” (IND) consistent with the existing designation upon 

the Future Land Use Map of the Town Plan 2040 of “Employment/Manufacturing”; 

Planning Board Page 7



3 

Annexation Process Memo – 3006 Old Concord Road – 20250113 

 

2. Advertise for a Public Legislative Hearing scheduled for February 10, 2025 

before the Mayor and Town Council on the subject of annexing and applying an 

initial Town zoning designation to the property. 

 

NEXT STEPS BY MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL - THE ACTIONS THAT MAY 

BE TAKEN AT THE February 10, 2025 REGULAR MEETING INCLUDE: 

 

1. Concurrently conducting the required Legislative Public Hearings for the purpose 

of receiving input from citizens and/or persons owning an interest in the subject 

property. 

2. Consideration (adoption or rejection) of an Ordinance #ANNEX-2025-02-10-1 

Extending the Corporate Limits (annexation) to include the subject property. 

3. Consideration (adoption or rejection) of an Ordinance #ZMA-2025-02-10-1 

Amending the Official Zoning Map of the Granite Quarry Development Ordinance 

(initial zoning) to reflect designation upon the subject property. 

 

FINAL STEPS FOLLOWING ANNEXATION AND ZONING 

Following the annexation of the property, staff will be preparing additional materials to  

1. Update Official Zoning Map in Clerk’s record, Administrator’s record and online. 

2. Update shape-files with Rowan County GIS to reflect new zoning and jurisdictional 

designations online. 

3. Record the annexation with both the NC Secretary of State and Rowan County 

Register of Deeds;  

4. Notify all public utilities (telecom, etc.) of the change in the corporate limits of the 

Town for their proper reporting of utility franchise taxes paid to the State of North 

Carolina so local shared revenues can be properly distributed;  

5. Accept application from owner for the approval (by staff) of site development 

plan(s) and/or preliminary plat(s) for any future development project upon the 

subject property; 

6. Process zoning permit application(s) and issue permit(s) upon compliance with the 

Granite Quarry Development Ordinance (GQDO). 

                

Planning Board Page 8



 

1 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE  

GRANITE QUARRY DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE  

OF THE TOWN OF GRANITE QUARRY, NORTH CAROLINA 

 

Ordinance #ZMA-2025-02-10-1 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Granite Quarry, North 

Carolina that the Official Zoning Map (OZM) of the Granite Quarry Development Ordinance 

(GQDO) be amended in accordance with both GQDO Article 5 and Article 6 of G.S. Chapter 

160D.  The owner, Eagle Mountain Holdings LLC and Ambro and Sons LLP, 2500 County Rd 42 

W. Burnsville, MN 55337, of property located at 3006 Old Concord Road (Rowan County Parcel 

ID 402 062) submitted a petition for voluntary non-contiguous annexation into the town limits of 

the Town of Granite Quarry.  The property consists of approximately 1.162 acres. 

 

Part 1.  Consistency with Adopted Comprehensive Plan. 

The Town Council finds that a zoning map amendment applicable to the subject properties, from 

Rowan County RA (Residential Agricultural) Zoning District establishing a new zoning 

designation in accordance with procedures established by G.S. 160D-604(b) of “Industrial 

(IND)” is consistent with the Town’s 2040 Comprehensive Land Use & Master Plan (the Plan) 

and the “Employment/Manufacturing” designation upon the subject property as appearing on the 

Plan’s “Future Land Use Map” therein as amended, as required by G.S. 160D-605(a).   

 

Part 2. Statement of Reasonableness. 

This amendment is reasonable because the subject property allows for the growth and expansion 

of employment opportunities supporting the local economic base of the Town while improving the 

quality of life for Granite Quarry residents by enabling both job opportunities and diversification 

of the tax base by adding non-residential properties developed in accordance with the GQDO, as 

required by G.S. 160D-605(b). 

 

Part 3.  Establishment of New Zoning Designation. 

That Rowan County Parcel 402 062 as shown in Attachments “A” and “B”, attached hereto shall 

be designated “Industrial (IND)” on the Official Zoning Map.  Said parcel consisting of 

approximately 1.16 acres in total. 

 

Part 4.  Effective Date. 

This Ordinance shall be effective at 12:01 AM on the 11th day of February 2025. 

 

 

Adopted this 10th day of February 2025. 
 

 

 s/ ____________________________  s/  _______________________________ 

 Brittany H. Barnhardt, Mayor   Aubrey Smith, Town Clerk 

  

Planning Board Page 9



 

2 

 

Attachment “A” 

 

Image from Rowan County GIS showing parcel 402 062: 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(This space left blank intentionally) 

  

Planning Board Page 10



 

3 

 

Attachment “B” 

 

Description(s): 

 

Parcel 402 062 

 

Planning Board Page 11



1 

Annexation Process Memo – 260 Tingle Drive – 20250113 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Town of Granite Quarry, N.C. 

 

To: Mayor and Town Council   

 

Date: January 13, 2025 

 

From: F. Richard “Rick” Flowe, AICP, Planning, Zoning & Subdivision Administrator 

 

Re: Voluntary Annexation Petition for non-contiguous property of Rowan Summit, 

LLC, the owner of properties located at 260 Tingle Drive, Salisbury NC 28146  

 

BACKGROUND 

On December 17, 2024, the owner of property located at 260 Tingle Drive (Rowan County 

Parcel ID 402C017) submitted a petition for voluntary non-contiguous annexation into the 

town limits of the Town of Granite Quarry.  The property consists of approximately 1.743 

acres.  Location map from Rowan County GIS: 

 

       

 
  

Planning Board Page 12



2 

Annexation Process Memo – 260 Tingle Drive – 20250113 

 

FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS 

The North Carolina General Statutes require that property deemed non-contiguous to the 

“primary corporate limits” of a municipality must meet certain requirements for 

annexation.  The following provisions demonstrate the eligibility of the subject property(s) 

for annexation by the Town as follows: 

1. The property lies within an area contained within the defined boundaries of an 

annexation boundary agreement authorized by NCGS 160A, Article 4A, Part 6.  

2. The property meets the requirements of NCGS 160A-58.1(b2).  

3. The property owner has submitted a petition to the Town of Granite Quarry for 

annexation.   

 

The property does not currently have a Town of Granite Quarry zoning designation due to 

its location beyond the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction of the Town; therefore, a concurrent 

hearing may be held at the time of annexation to designate an initial zoning designation 

upon the Official Zoning Map of the Town. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The property will be subject to applicable taxes and fees in accordance with rates in effect 

throughout the Town.    The Town will deliver standard municipal services for this property 

upon development.  The Town will receive additional revenues from Ad Valorum tax 

assessments and applicable state shared revenues.   

 

RECOMMENDATION FOR ACTION ON ANNEXATION & ZONING 

There are several steps required to annex and apply Town zoning to this property.  The 

following outline illustrates how this process may be completed in two regular meetings of 

the Mayor and Town Council. 

 

THE ACTIONS THAT MAY BE TAKEN AT THE January 13, 2025 MEETING 

INCLUDE: 

 

a. Direct (by Resolution #RES-2025-01-13-3) for the Town Clerk to 

investigate the sufficiency of the petition.  

b. Clerk presents “Certification of Sufficiency” to the Board 

c. Upon receipt of petition certification by Town Clerk, call (by Resolution 

#RES-2025-01-13-4) for public hearing at next regular meeting.  

 

 

ADDITIONAL STEPS BEFORE AND BETWEEN TOWN BOARD MEETINGS  

While the Mayor and Town Council undertake the process of annexation, staff will: 

1. Place an item on the February 3, 2025 Planning Board agenda a request for 

their recommendation on the designation of the appropriate zoning district 

requested by the petitioner as “Interstate Highway 85 Commercial District” (C-

85) consistent with the existing designation upon the Future Land Use Map of the 

Town Plan 2040 of “Commercial”; and 

Planning Board Page 13



3 

Annexation Process Memo – 260 Tingle Drive – 20250113 

 

2. Advertise for a Public Legislative Hearing scheduled for February 10, 2025 

before the Mayor and Town Council on the subject of annexing and applying an 

initial Town zoning designation to the property. 

 

NEXT STEPS BY MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL - THE ACTIONS THAT MAY 

BE TAKEN AT THE February 10, 2025 REGULAR MEETING INCLUDE: 

 

1. Concurrently conducting the required Legislative Public Hearings for the purpose 

of receiving input from citizens and/or persons owning an interest in the subject 

property. 

2. Consideration (adoption or rejection) of an Ordinance #ANNEX-2025-02-10-2 

Extending the Corporate Limits (annexation) to include the subject property. 

3. Consideration (adoption or rejection) of an Ordinance #ZMA-2025-02-10-2 

Amending the Official Zoning Map of the Granite Quarry Development Ordinance 

(initial zoning) to reflect designation upon the subject property. 

 

FINAL STEPS FOLLOWING ANNEXATION AND ZONING 

Following the annexation of the property, staff will be preparing additional materials to  

1. Update Official Zoning Map in Clerk’s record, Administrator’s record and online. 

2. Update shape-files with Rowan County GIS to reflect new zoning and jurisdictional 

designations online. 

3. Record the annexation with both the NC Secretary of State and Rowan County 

Register of Deeds;  

4. Notify all public utilities (telecom, etc.) of the change in the corporate limits of the 

Town for their proper reporting of utility franchise taxes paid to the State of North 

Carolina so local shared revenues can be properly distributed;  

5. Accept application from owner for the approval (by staff) of site development 

plan(s) and/or preliminary plat(s) for any future development project upon the 

subject property; 

6. Process zoning permit application(s) and issue permit(s) upon compliance with the 

Granite Quarry Development Ordinance (GQDO). 

                

Planning Board Page 14



 

1 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE  

GRANITE QUARRY DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE  

OF THE TOWN OF GRANITE QUARRY, NORTH CAROLINA 

 

Ordinance #ZMA-2025-02-10-2 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and Town Council of the Town of Granite Quarry, North 

Carolina that the Official Zoning Map (OZM) of the Granite Quarry Development Ordinance 

(GQDO) be amended in accordance with both GQDO Article 5 and Article 6 of G.S. Chapter 

160D.  Rowan Summit, LLC, the owner of property located at 260 Tingle Drive (Rowan County 

Parcel ID 402C017) submitted a petition for voluntary non-contiguous annexation into the town 

limits of the Town of Granite Quarry.  The property consists of approximately 1.743 acres. 

 

Part 1.  Consistency with Adopted Comprehensive Plan. 

The Town Council finds that a zoning map amendment applicable to the subject property, from 

Rowan County CBI (commercial/business/industry) Zoning District establishing a new zoning 

designation in accordance with procedures established by G.S. 160D-604(b) of “Interstate 

Highway 85 Commercial (C-85) District” is consistent with the Town’s 2040 Comprehensive 

Land Use & Master Plan (the Plan) and the “Commercial” designation upon the subject property 

as appearing on the Plan’s “Future Land Use Map” therein as amended, as required by G.S. 

160D-605(a). 

 

Part 2. Statement of Reasonableness. 

This amendment is reasonable because the subject property allows for the growth and expansion 

of commercial opportunities supporting the local economic base of the Town while improving the 

quality of life for Granite Quarry residents by enabling both job opportunities and diversification 

of the tax base by adding non-residential properties, as required by G.S. 160D-605(b). 

 

Part 3.  Establishment of New Zoning Designation. 

That Rowan County Parcel ID 402C017 as shown in Attachments “A” and “B”, attached hereto 

shall be designated “Interstate Highway 85 Commercial (C-85) District” on the Official Zoning 

Map.   

 

Part 4.   Effective Date. 

This Ordinance shall be effective at 12:01 AM on the 11th day of February 2025. 

 

 

Adopted this 10th day of February 2025. 
 

 

 s/ ____________________________  s/  _______________________________ 

 Brittany H. Barnhardt, Mayor   Aubrey Smith, Town Clerk 

  

Planning Board Page 15



 

2 

 

Attachment “A” 

 

Image from Rowan County GIS: 260 Tingle Drive (Rowan County Parcel ID 402C017) 

 

 
 

 

Attachment “B” 

  Description(s): 

 

 Parcel 402C017 

 

 

Planning Board Page 16



Planning Board Page 17



Planning Board Page 18



Planning Board Page 19



Planning Board Page 20



Planning Board Page 21



Planning Board Page 22


	February 3, 2025 Planning Board Agenda
	1. Approval of Agenda
	2. Approval of Minutes
	3. ZMA 2025-02-10-1 3006 Old Concord Rd
	4. ZMA 2025-02-10-2 260 Tingle Dr
	5. Rules of Procedure



